
 

    
          

 
 
 

Gloucester Road    Tewkesbury   Glos   GL20 5TT   Member Services Tel: (01684) 272021   
Email: democraticservices@tewkesbury.gov.uk    Website: www.tewkesbury.gov.uk 

 
 
1 March 2023 
 

Committee Council 

Date Thursday, 9 March 2023 

Time of Meeting 6:00 pm 

Venue Tewkesbury Borough Council Offices, 
Severn Room 

 

 

ALL MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL ARE REQUESTED 
TO ATTEND 

 
 

Agenda 

 

1.   ANNOUNCEMENTS  
   
 1. When the continuous alarm sounds you must evacuate the building 

by the nearest available fire exit. Members and visitors should 
proceed to the visitors’ car park at the front of the building and await 
further instructions (during office hours staff should proceed to their 
usual assembly point; outside of office hours proceed to the visitors’ 
car park). Please do not re-enter the building unless instructed to do 
so.  

 
 In the event of a fire any person with a disability should be assisted 

in leaving the building.   
 
2. To receive any announcements from the Chair of the Meeting and/or 

the Chief Executive. 

 

   
2.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
   

mailto:memberservices@tewkesburybc.gov.uk


 Item Page(s) 

 

 2 

 
3.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
   
 Pursuant to the adoption by the Council on 24 January 2023 of the 

Tewkesbury Borough Council Code of Conduct, effective from 1 February 
2023, as set out in Minute No. CL.72, Members are invited to declare any 
interest they may have in the business set out on the Agenda to which the 
approved Code applies. 

 

   
4.   MINUTES 1 - 11 
   
 To approve the Minutes of the meeting held on 21 February 2023.  
   
5.   ITEMS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC  
   
 a)  To receive any questions, deputations or petitions submitted under 

Council Rule of Procedure.12.  
 
(The deadline for public participation submissions for this meeting is                 
2 March 2023). 

 
b)  To receive any petitions submitted under the Council’s Petitions 

Scheme. 

 

   
6.   MEMBER QUESTIONS PROPERLY SUBMITTED IN ACCORDANCE 

WITH COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULES 
 

   
 To receive any questions submitted under Rule of Procedure 13. Any 

items received will be circulated on Wednesday 8 March 2023. 
 
(Any questions must be submitted in writing to Democratic Services by, 
not later than, 10.00am on Wednesday 1 March 2023). 

 

   
7.   AMENDMENT TO SCHEME OF DELEGATION 12 - 14 
   
 To agree an amendment to the Constitution to enable appropriate 

delegation arrangements for re-designating polling places outside of a full 
Polling District review.   

 

   
8.   CONTINUATION OF GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH 

JOINT COMMITTEE - TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2023 
15 - 18 

   
 To agree an extension to the operation of the Gloucestershire Economic 

Growth Joint Committee.  
 

   
9.   SEPARATE BUSINESS  
   
 

The Chair will move the adoption of the following resolution: 

That under Section 100(A)(4) Local Government Act 1972, the public be 
excluded for the following items on the grounds that they involve the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of 
the Act. 

 

   



 Item Page(s) 

 

 3 

 
10.   TEWKESBURY GARDEN TOWN - NEW DEVELOPMENT 

CORPORATION COMPETITION 
19 - 149 

   
 (Exempt –Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government 

Act 1972 –Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the authority holding that information)) 
 
To consider the Outline Business Case for the Garden Town Development 
Corporation.   

 

   
11.   STAFF RETENTION AND RECRUITMENT PHASES 2 AND 3 150 - 158 
   
 (Exempt –Paragraph 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government 

Act 1972 – Information relating to any individual)  
 
To consider phases 2 and 3 of the retention and recruitment project.  

 

   
 
 
 
Recording of Meetings  
 
In accordance with the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014, please be 
aware that the proceedings of this meeting may be recorded and this may include recording of 
persons seated in the public gallery or speaking at the meeting. Please notify the Democratic 
Services Officer if you have any objections to this practice and the Mayor will take reasonable 
steps to ensure that any request not to be recorded is complied with.  
 
Any recording must take place in such a way as to ensure that the view of Councillors, Officers, 
the public and press is not obstructed. The use of flash photography and/or additional lighting 
will not be allowed unless this has been discussed and agreed in advance of the meeting.  

 

 

Head of Democratic Services for  
Corporate Director 



TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

 
Minutes of a Meeting of the Council held at the Council Offices, Gloucester 
Road, Tewkesbury on Tuesday, 21 February 2023 commencing at 6:00 pm 

 

 
Present: 

 
The Worshipful the Mayor Councillor J W Murphy 
Deputy Mayor Councillor A S Reece 

 
and Councillors: 

 
R A Bird, G F Blackwell, G J Bocking, C L J Carter, C M Cody, K J Cromwell, M Dean,                              

R D East, P A Godwin, M A Gore, D W Gray, D J Harwood, M L Jordan, E J MacTiernan,                            
J R Mason, H C McLain, P D McLain, C E Mills, J P Mills, H S Munro, C Reid, P E Smith,                          

R J G Smith, V D Smith, P D Surman, M G Sztymiak, S Thomson, R J E Vines, M J Williams 
and P N Workman  

 

CL.73 ANNOUNCEMENTS  

73.1 The evacuation procedure, as noted on the Agenda, was advised to those present. 

CL.74 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

74.1 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors K Berliner, J H Evetts,                          
P W Ockelton, J K Smith, C Softley and R J Stanley.   

CL.75 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

75.1 The Committee’s attention was drawn to the Tewkesbury Borough Council Code of 
Conduct which was adopted by the Council on 24 January 2023 and took effect 
from 1 February 2023.  

75.2 There were no declarations made on this occasion.  

CL.76 MINUTES  

76.1 The Minutes of the meeting held on 24 January 2023, copies of which had been 
circulated, were approved as a correct record and signed by the Mayor.   

CL.77 ITEMS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC  

77.1 There were no items from members of the public.   

1

Agenda Item 4



CL.21.02.23 

 

CL.78 MEMBER QUESTIONS PROPERLY SUBMITTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULES  

78.1 The following question was received from Councillor Cody to the Leader of the 
Council, Councillor Bird.  The answer was given by the Leader of the Council and 
was taken as read without discussion. 

 Question 1  

At the Tewkesbury Borough Full Council meeting on the 6 December 2022, I voted 
in favour of webcasting as I believe in transparency and think the public have a 
right to view what we discuss on their behalf, without having to travel into 
Tewkesbury at a specific time to watch the meeting in person. 

The meeting minutes state that, “Following a lengthy discussion as to the merits of 
webcasting, as well as concerns about the costs of the system at the time of a 
national cost of living emergency…it was agreed that webcasting would not be 
implemented at this time.”  

 Given their concerns, what has the Leader of the Council, who voted against 
webcasting, done to make sure that the specific amount of money saved has 
indeed been spent on the cost of living emergency?  Please can the Leader of the 
Council confirm when this money was spent, (or ring-fenced) and provide 
information on who is deciding what the money is used for? 

 Answer 1 

 The pressures on our finances mean that we must make careful choices when 
faced with a variety of competing demands. It is not always possible to fund 
everything we would like to support, as evidenced by the budget proposal tonight, 
where, in order to deliver a sound and balanced budget, we have been unable to 
include nearly half a million pounds of funding requests. The budget proposal does 
however provide funding and investment to ensure our Council continues to 
provide vital services to our expanding communities for the forthcoming year. 

78.2 The Mayor invited supplementary questions and the Member asked the following 
which the Leader of the Council answered: 

 Q1 - Is the truth really that Councillors, including our Leader, who voted against 
webcasting just didn't want the transparency it brings and so they ’conveniently’ 
used the cost of living crisis as an excuse without any intention of the money 
actually helping our vulnerable residents instead? 

 A1 - No money was ringfenced. Various views were expressed during the debate 
both for and against webcasting for a variety of reasons. A majority of Councillors 
decided the implementation of webcasting was not a good use of Council tax 
payers’ money at this time. 

78.3 The following question was received from Councillor Stanley to the Leader of the 
Council, Councillor Bird.  The answer was given by the Leader of the Council and 
was taken as read without discussion. 

 Question 2  

Please may I have an updated figure of the costs to the Borough Council, since 
May 2019, of: 

i.  all formal challenges to planning decisions where the challenge has been 
made by or against the Council including the (recently lost) Ashchurch Bridge. 

ii.  costs incurred by the Council in defending lost planning appeals, including, but 
not limited to the lost appeal for 215 homes in Bishops Cleeve and 460 homes 
at Fiddington (as this case and other similar appeals were not included last 
time). 

2



CL.21.02.23 

iii.  costs paid by the Council as a consequence of lost planning appeals. 

Answer 2 

The cost to the Council of formal challenges and lost appeals includes external 
costs for Counsel/Advocate’s fees together with the costs of appointing consultants 
as required to give evidence on behalf of the Council (e.g.  landscape evidence, 
planning evidence, arboricultural evidence).  In addition, there are significant 
amounts of work carried out by the Council officers to prepare for challenges / 
appeals including, where required, attendance at Public Inquiries.  Whilst those 
costs for which invoices are raised can be quantified, Council Officers do not 
routinely record their time against specific tasks/applications and it is therefore not 
practicably possible, over the period 2019 to date, to quantify the officer time spent 
on those matters.   

i.  The total external costs to the Council of formal challenges is £227,130. 

ii.  The total costs to the Council in defending lost planning appeals is £288,124. 

iii.  The costs paid to date amount to £14,610, but there is one cost award 
against the Council yet to be settled. 

78.4 The following question was received from Councillor Stanley to the Lead Member 
for Clean and Green Environment, Councillor Mason.  The answer was given by the 
Lead Member for Clean and Green Environment and was taken as read without 
discussion. 

 Question 3 

 Please can Officers confirm the annual losses made by the Council’s trade waste 
service in 2022-2023 and the projected loss for 2023-24? What plans/steps have 
been taken to stop these losses and ensure a profitable service is provided? 

 Answer 3 

 Please see the table below which shows the deficit in the years referred to in the 
question.  We have had a project running for a number of years to attempt to get the 
service to a position where it is breaking even and possibly delivering a surplus, 
however the gap between the costs of delivering the service and income generated 
is widening.  Therefore, the Head of Community Services is working on an 
alternative proposal which would reduce the deficit and he will present that proposal 
to the Executive Committee in March. 

  22/23 23/24 

Income 304,948  335,500  

Expenditure:     

Ubico Contract    359,868    410,407  

Employment Costs      52,205      56,276  

Deficit    107,125    131,183  

78.5 The following questions were received from Councillor Munro to the Lead Member 
for Built Environment, Councillor Gore.  The answers were given by the Lead 
Member for Built Environment and were taken as read without discussion. 

 Question 4 

 At the meeting of Full Council in December 2022, it was reported that the amount of 
S106 monies held by Tewkesbury Borough Council was just under £9m as at the 
end of March 2022. As it is understood that since that meeting a S106 officer has 
been recruited and is in post, please can Councillors be given a summary of what 
infrastructure this considerable sum of money is to be used for or if this is not 

3



CL.21.02.23 

possible, a date when a report will be available. 

 Answer 4 

Allocation Available 

Affordable Housing  - S106 Contribution 3,251,014.84 

Burial Facilities - S106 Contribution 106,253.95 

Community Centre - S106 Contribution 121,718.93 

Community Facilities - S106 Contribution 648,514.11 

Dog Bins & Signs - S106 Contribution 39,710.35 

Gypsy and Traveller Sites - S106 Contribution 563,253.75 

Healthcare Facility - S106 Contribution 226,482.86 

Lighting - S106 Contribution 1,338.69 

Pitches & Changing Rooms - S106 Contribution 2,415,247.64 

Play Facilities - S106 Contributions 247,543.57 

Police Vehicles - S106 Contribution 109,571.33 

Public Open Space  - Commuted Sum 550,890.37 

Public Open Space  - On Site Maintenance Sum - 
S106 Contribution 

94,087.89 

Public Open Space  - S106 Contribution for Off Site 28,372.28 

Public Open Space  MUGA - S106 Provided On Site 55,422.69 

Public Art - S106 Contribution 52,816.12 

Public Recycling - S106 Contribution 91,975.95 

Public Recycling - S106 Provided On Site 14,816.71 

S106 Monitoring Fee 27,456.37 

Special Area of Conservation (SAC) 56,250.00 

Sports Facilities - S106 Provided On Site 114,349.86 

Sports Facilities Off Site - S106 Contribution 1,012,023.50 

Sports Hall - S106 Contribution 47,895.04 

Trees and Hedgerows 6,017.00 

Village Hall - S106 Contribution 32,494.98 

Waste Disposal - S106 Contribution 10,762.10 

Works Contribution 589.45 

Total 9,926,870.33 

 Question 5 

 Please can Councillors be advised of the interest earned on S106 monies in 
2021/22 (the balance given as at the start of April 2021 was c£9.6m and as above 
as at end March 2022) and the first six months of 2022/23 and be assured that this 
interest is being used for community infrastructure.  

 Answer 5 

 The balance of s106 monies is combined with the rest of the cashflow of the Council 
and managed through our treasury activities as a whole. It is therefore not possible 
to be specific as to how much that particular balance has earned in interest but, if 
we take the average balance held for s106 during the periods identified and apply 
the average combined interest rate received for all investments in the same period, 
the interest earned for s106 balances would be £120,615 and £85,536 respectively.  

 The treasury activities of the Council support the overall position of the Council’s 
budget and therefore sums earned provide funding for all of our services including 
community infrastructure related activities such as the s106 officer, grounds 
maintenance and asset maintenance such as parks and watercourses. 

4



CL.21.02.23 

  

  

 Question 6 

 Please can Councillors be advised of any S106 trigger points due in 2023/24 and 
any S106 monies with a time limit which will run out in 2023/24. Please can 
Councillors be advised how these and any trigger points which are dependent on for 
example x houses being built are being monitored.  

 Answer 6 

 The majority of trigger points for S106 agreements are based on build out rates or 
for land to be transferred at a certain point as development is being built out. They 
are not all date triggers. Consequently, it is not possible to confirm all of the trigger 
points due in 2023/4.  

 Regarding any S106 monies with a time limit running out in 2023/4, the majority of 
the money is committed. Work is progressing on a specific project which it is 
anticipated will result in all monies being committed.   

 In terms of how trigger points are being monitored, there is, in most cases, an 
obligation placed on the developer to inform the Council when trigger points are 
being met. We also use existing monitoring of completions and contact is made 
directly with developers.   

 Question 7 

 It is understood that a sum in the order of c£64k was returned to developers in 
2022/3 as the time period for the monies to be spent in expired. As a consequence, 
residents of Stoke Orchard did not get the upgrade to their MUGA that it is 
understood the money was for.  Please can Councillors be advised what measures 
have been put in place to ensure that this does not happen again and what 
assistance the Council could provide to secure alternative funding for upgrades to 
the MUGA. 

 Answer 7 

 A corporate group has been set up to provide oversight of the process of spending 
and monitoring S106 monies.  

 The Parish Council has been offered pro-active support through the Community 
Funding Officer to identify and secure alternative funding. 

78.6 The Mayor invited supplementary questions and the Member asked the following 
which the Lead Member for Built Environment advised would be answered in 
writing:  

 Q4 – Please can Councillors be told, for the £2.4m reserved for pitches and 
changing rooms, whether sites have been identified, is there a plan to spend the 
monies and, if so, where are the pitches and when will the monies be spent?   

 Q6 -   Please can Councillors be told the details of S106 monies with a time limit 
running out in 2023/24, what is the money committed for and what is the specific 
project referred to that will result in all monies being committed?  

 Q7 - Please can all Councillors have the details of the membership of the corporate 
group set up to provide S106 oversight, who Chairs the group, are Members invited 
and when is the next meeting?  

5



CL.21.02.23 

 

CL.79 RECOMMENDATIONS FROM EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE  

 Budget 2023/24  

79.1 At its meeting on 1 February 2023 the Executive Committee considered the 2023/24 
budget and made a recommendation to Council.   

79.2 The report which was considered by the Executive Committee had been circulated 
with the Agenda for the current meeting at Pages No. 16-43.  

79.3 In proposing the recommendation, the Chair of the Executive Committee offered his 
thanks to everyone involved in the work to ensure the Council had a balanced 
budget to agree. The Lead Member for Finance and Asset Management seconded 
the recommendation from the Executive Committee.  

79.4 A Member referred to staff pay awards and questioned what assumptions had been 
made given that last year the Council’s budget had underestimated what would be 
needed. In response, the Head of Finance and Asset Management explained that 
£1,600 had been allowed for every scale point which would take the Council to the 
estimated position of the national living wage at the lowest scale point. In response 
to a query regarding Parish precepts, he explained that there were no limits so the 
Parishes could increase their precepts as they wished; however, any that raised 
their precept over £140,000 had to provide information for the Borough Council to 
publish with its Council Tax information.  

79.5  The proposal was seconded and, in accordance with the Local Authorities (Standing 
Orders) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2014, voting on the proposal was 
recorded as follows: 

For  Against Abstain Absent  

R A Bird  M L Jordan K Berliner  

G F Blackwell  H S Munro J H Evetts 

G J Bocking  P E Smith P W Ockelton 

C L J Carter 
 

R J G Smith J K Smith 

C M Cody 
 

S Thomson C Softley 

K J Cromwell   R J Stanley 

M Dean    

R D East    

P A Godwin    

M A Gore    

D W Gray    

D J Harwood    

E J MacTiernan     

J R Mason    

6



CL.21.02.23 

H C McLain    

P D McLain    

C E Mills    

J P Mills    

J W Murphy    

A S Reece    

C Reid    

V D Smith    

P D Surman    

M G Sztymiak    

R J E Vines    

M J Williams    

P N Workman    

79.6 Accordingly, it was  

 RESOLVED         1.    That a net budget of £11,300,458 be APPROVED.  

2.  That a Band D Council Tax of £139.36, an increase of £5.00 
per annum, be APPROVED.    

4.    That growth items be included within the budget for 2023/24, 
as proposed in Appendix A to the report. 

5.  That the Capital Programme, as proposed in Appendix B to 
the report, be AGREED.   

CL.80 PAY POLICY STATEMENT  

80.1 The report of the Head of Corporate Services, circulated at Pages No. 44-55, asked 
Members to approve the Pay Policy Statement 2023/24.  

80.2 The Lead Member for Organisational Development advised that the document had 
to be approved annually. It had been reviewed by the Council’s HR and Finance 
Officers to ensure it was kept up to date and minor adjustments had been made 
from the previous year’s statement, largely to update the statistics and to reflect the 
changes in management structure from 1 April 2023. The purpose of the Pay Policy 
Statement was to ensure transparency and accountability with regard to its 
approach to setting pay. This included the method by which salaries and severance 
payments were determined, the remuneration of senior managers and the 
remuneration of the lowest level of posts within the Council. Once approved, the 
statement would be shared on the transparency section of the Council’s website. 
The systems, processes and policies which supported the statement were under 
continual review by the HR team. 

80.3 Upon being proposed and seconded, it was  

 RESOLVED That the Pay Policy Statement be APPROVED.   

7



CL.21.02.23 

CL.81 COUNCIL TAX SETTING 2023/24  

81.1 Having agreed the Council’s 2023/24 budget earlier in the meeting, attention was drawn to 
a report, circulated separately, which asked Members to approve and set a Council Tax 
requirement for 2023/24.  

81.2 In proposing the Council Tax report, the Lead Member for Finance and Asset Management 
explained that, as the billing authority, the Council must formally approve the Council Tax 
for the forthcoming year including the Council Tax levels set by the County Council, the 
Police and Crime Commissioner for Gloucestershire and our Town and Parish Councils. 
For 2023/24, the average Band D Council Tax within the Borough would be £2,028.92 per 
annum which was an increase of £95.17 or 4.92%. This position was a combination of the 
following increases in Council tax: the Police and Crime Commissioner – 5.36% or £15.00; 
the County Council – 4.99% or £72.42; the average Town and Parish Council – 4.05% or 
£2.75; and Tewkesbury Borough Council – 3.72% or £5.00. As a result of the increases, 
the Borough Council’s share of the overall Council Tax bill fell from 6.94% to 6.86%. The 
position was summarised in the table at Section 3.1 of the covering report with further detail 
provided in the appendices. The full Council Tax resolution, as required by the legislation, 
was contained within Appendix A and he asked the Council to formally approve it.  

81.3 The recommendation was proposed and seconded and, in accordance with the Local 
Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2014, voting was 
recorded as follows:  

For  Against Abstain Absent  

R A Bird  M L Jordan K Berliner  

G F Blackwell  H S Munro J H Evetts 

G J Bocking  P E Smith P W Ockelton 

C L J Carter 
 

R J G Smith J K Smith 

C M Cody 
 

S Thomson C Softley 

K J Cromwell   R J Stanley 

M Dean    

R D East    

P A Godwin    

M A Gore    

D W Gray    

D J Harwood    

E J MacTiernan     

J R Mason    

H C McLain    

P D McLain    

8



CL.21.02.23 

C E Mills    

J P Mills    

J W Murphy    

A S Reece    

C Reid    

V D Smith    

P D Surman    

M G Sztymiak    

R J E Vines    

M J Williams    

P N Workman    

81.4 Accordingly, it was  

 RESOLVED     1.  That it be NOTED that, on 1 December 2022, the Council   
     calculated:  

a) the Council Tax Base 2023/24 for the whole Council area as 
£36,781.36 (Item T in the formula in section 31B of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992, as amended (the "Act")); and, 

b) for dwellings in those parts of its area to which a Parish precept 
relates as attached to the report at Appendix C.  

2.  That the Council Tax requirement calculated for the Council's own 
purposes for 2023/24 (excluding Parish precepts) is £5,125,850.  

3.  That the following amounts be calculated for the year 2023/24 in 
accordance with Sections 30 to 36 of the Act: 

a.  £57,970,592 being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council 
estimates for the items set out in Section 31A(2) of the Act taking 
into account all precepts issued to it by Parish Councils; 

b.  £50,244,300 being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council 
estimates for the items set out in Section 31A(3) of the Act;  

c.  £7,726,292 being the amount by which the aggregate at 3(a) 
above exceeds the aggregate at 3(b) above, calculated by the 
Council in accordance with Section 31A(4) of the Act as its Council 
Tax requirement for the year. (Item R in the formula in Section 31B 
of the Act); 

d.  £210.06 being the amount at 3(c) above (Item R), all divided by 
Item T(1(a) above), calculated by the Council, in accordance with 
Section 31B of the Act, as the basic amount of its Council Tax for 
the year (including Parish precepts). 

e.  £2,600,442 being the aggregate amount of all special items (Parish 
precepts) referred to in Section 34(1) of the Act (as per Appendix C 
to the report); 

 

9



CL.21.02.23 

 

f.  £139.36 being the amount at 3(d) above less the result given by 
dividing the amount at 3(e) above by Item T(1(a) above), 
calculated by the Council, in accordance with Section 34(2) of the 
Act, as the basic amount of its Council Tax for the year for 
dwellings in those parts of its area to which no Parish precept 
relates; 

g.  the amounts stated in Column 5 (Band D Parish/Town and 
Borough b)) of Appendix B to the report are given by adding to the 
amount at 3(f) above the amounts of special items relating to 
dwellings in those parts of the Council's area specified in Column 1 
of Appendix B in accordance with Section 34(3) of the Act. For 
completeness the table shows all areas; and  

h.  the amount set out in Appendix B to the report given by multiplying 
the amounts at 3(g) above by the number which, in proportion set 
out in Section 5(1) of the Act, is applicable to dwellings listed in a 
particular Valuation Band divided by the number which, in that 
proportion, is applicable to dwellings listed in Valuation Band D, 
calculated by the Council, in accordance with Section 36(1) of the 
Act, as the amounts to be taken into account for the year in respect 
of categories of dwellings listed in different Valuation Bands.  

4. That it be NOTED that, for the year 2023/24, Gloucestershire County 
Council and the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner for 
Gloucestershire have stated the following amounts in precepts issued 
to the Borough Council, in accordance with Section 40 of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992, for each of the categories of dwellings 
shown below: 

  
Valuation 
Bands 

Gloucestershire County 
Council 

Office of the 
Police and 
Crime  
Commissioner 
for 
Gloucestershire 

    £   £ 

  ASC General Total 
 A 132.56 883.29 1,015.85 196.72 

B 154.65 1,030.51 1,185.16 229.51 

C 176.75 1,177.72 1,354.47 262.29 

D 198.84 1,324.94 1,523.78 295.08 

E 243.03 1,619.37 1,862.40 360.65 

F 287.21 1,913.81 2,201.02 426.23 

G 331.40 2,208.23 2,539.63 491.80 

H 397.68 2,649.88 3,047.56 590.16 

5.  That, having calculated the aggregate in each case of the amounts at 
3(h) and 4 above, the Council, in accordance with Sections 30 and 36 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, hereby sets the amounts, 
set out in Appendix B to the report, as the amounts of Council Tax for 
the year 2023/2024 for each of the categories of dwellings shown in 
Schedule 3. 

 

 

10



CL.21.02.23 

 

6.  The Council has determined that its relevant basic amount of Council 
Tax for 2023/24 is not excessive in accordance with principles 
approved under Section 52ZB of the Local Government Finance Act 
1992. As the billing authority, the Council has not been notified by a 
major precepting authority that its relevant basic amount of Council Tax 
for 2023/24 is excessive and that the billing authority is not required to 
hold a referendum in accordance with Section 52ZK of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992. 

CL.82 SEPARATE BUSINESS  

82.1 The Mayor proposed, and it was   

 RESOLVED That, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 
   1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for the following 
   items on the grounds that they involve the likely discussion of 
   exempt information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
   Act.      

CL.83 SEPARATE MINUTES  

83.1 The separate Minutes of the meeting held on 24 January 2023, copies of which 
had been circulated, were approved as a correct record and signed by the Mayor. 

 The meeting closed at 6:25 pm 

 
 
 

11



TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

Report to: Council  

Date of Meeting: 9 March 2023 

Subject: Amendment to Scheme of Delegation 

Report of: Head of Democratic Services 

Head of Service/Director: Corporate Director 

Lead Member: Lead Member for Corporate Governance  

Number of Appendices: None 

 

Executive Summary: 

To enable appropriate delegation arrangements for re-designating Polling Places and Stations 
outside of a full Polling District Review. 

Recommendation: 

To amend the Constitution as follows: - 

“That authority be delegated to the Returning Officer/Electoral Registration Officer and 
their deputy to keep Polling Places and Stations under review and amend any such 
arrangements where there is an operational need prior to the next full review of Polling 
Places.” 

 

Financial Implications: 

None. 

Legal Implications: 

None. 

Environmental and Sustainability Implications:  

None. 

Resource Implications (including impact on equalities): 

None. 

Safeguarding Implications: 

None. 

Impact on the Customer: 

Designation of Polling Places should take account of ease of access by electors. 

 
 

12

Agenda Item 7



1.0 INTRODUCTION 

1.1 A Polling Place is the building or area within which a Polling Station is situated.  Electoral 
Commission guidance states that Polling Places should be designated so that Polling 
Stations are within easy reach of all electors from across the Polling Place. 

1.2 The designation of a Polling Place is a matter for Council, whereas decisions about 
Polling Stations are for the Returning Officer.  Under Section 18B of the Representation 
of the People Act 1983, it is the duty of the Council of each district to designate such 
Polling Places and keep them under review. 

2.0 REVIEW OF POLLING PLACES  

2.1 The last full review of Polling Places took place in 2015.  A further review was due in 
2019 but this did not take place due to three elections taking place that year, one of 
which was planned; Borough and Parish elections and two of which were not; European 
elections and a Parliamentary election.  This was followed by COVID, the postponement 
of elections and uncertainties as to when elections would return to normal. 

2.2 The next full review must take place between 1 October 2023 and 31 January 2025 and 
needs to take account of the final proposals for revised Parliamentary constituencies 
which will be in place for the next Parliamentary general election which must be held by 
28 January 2025. 

2.3 With the requirements of the Elections Act 2022, the changes brought about by the 
Community Governance Review and the availability of venues it has been necessary to 
make minor changes to Polling Places and Stations without the time being available to 
conduct a full review.  Arguably these could be dealt with under the powers of the 
Returning Officer or urgency provisions, however it is felt in the interests of openness 
and transparency that the following provision should be included in the Constitution going 
forward: - 

“That the Returning Officer/Electoral Returning Officer and their deputy be granted 
delegated authority to keep Polling Places and Stations under regular review and amend 
any such arrangements where there is an operational need prior to the next full review of 
Polling Places.” 

3.0 CONSULTATION  

3.1 None. 

4.0 ASSOCIATED RISKS 

4.1 None. 

5.0 MONITORING 

5.1 Polling Places and Stations will be kept under regular review prior to the undertaking of a 
full review every five years. 

  

13



6.0 RELEVANT COUNCIL PLAN PRIORITIES/COUNCIL POLICIES/STRATEGIES 

6.1 None. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Background Papers: None. 
 
Contact Officer:  Head of Democratic Services Tel: 01684 272020 
 Email: lin.obrien@tewkesury.gov.uk  
 
Appendices:  None. 
 

14

mailto:lin.obrien@tewkesury.gov.uk


TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

Report to: Council 

Date of Meeting: 9 March 2023 

Subject: Continuation of Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint 
Committee – To 30 September 2023 

Report of: Chief Executive 

Corporate Lead: Chief Executive 

Lead Member: Leader of the Council 

Number of Appendices: None 

 

Executive Summary: 

To consider a request to extend the operation of the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint 
Committee (GEGJC) for a further 6 months from 31 March 2023 to 30 September 2023. To 
delegate authority to the Director of One Legal to amend the associated Inter Authority 
Agreement (IAA) (dated 4 September 2014) accordingly and delegate authority to the Chief 
Executive, in consultation with the Lead Member for Economic Development/Promotion, to 
agree the Gloucestershire City Region Board (GCRB) partnership Terms of Reference for 
approval by the Council. 

Recommendation: 

The Council RESOLVES that: 

1.  the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee continues to operate with 
the Council’s participation as a member authority, from 31 March 2023 to                                  
30 September 2023 under the terms set out in the associated Inter Authority 
Agreement.  

2.  authority is delegated to the Director of One Legal to agree and complete the 
appropriate legal documentation to allow the Inter Authority Agreement to be 
extended until 30 September 2023. 

3.    authority is delegated to the Chief Executive, in consultation with the Lead Member 
for Economic Development/Promotion, to agree the Gloucestershire City Region 
Board (GCRB) partnership Terms of Reference for approval by the Council 

Reasons for Recommendation: 

To allow the continuation of the GEGJC for a further six months to allow for the future 
governance of the GCRB to be developed and finalised.  

 

Resource Implications: 

None, the administration costs of the GEGJC are met from the Strategic Economic 
Development Fund (SEDF). 

15

Agenda Item 8



 

Legal Implications:  

Under Section 101(5) and 102 of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) and pursuant 
to the Local Authorities (Arrangements for the Discharge of Functions) (England) Regulations 
2012 local authorities may discharge any of their functions jointly and may also arrange for the 
discharge of those functions by a joint Committee.  

The IAA no longer includes a provision requiring 12 months’ notice being served by any of the 
partner authorities to any proposal to extend the life of the committee.  Therefore, it is 
permissible to extend the agreement if all the Gloucestershire local authorities agree. 

Risk Management Implications: 

The risk of not extending GEGJC would leave the county with no joint administrative body for 
the management and allocation of the SEDF established under business rates pool 
arrangements. The proposed extension of the IAA until 30 September 2023 to enable the Joint 
Committee to continue to operate until that date does not present any particular risks to the 
authority. 

Performance Management Follow-up: 

Further reports in respect of the future of GEGJC and county wide economic governance 
arrangements will be forwarded to Council as required. 

Environmental Implications:  

None. 

 

1.0 INTRODUCTION/BACKGROUND 

1.1 In July 2020 Council considered a report and resolved that the operation of the GEGJC 
should be extended for a period of 18 months to expire on 4 March 2022. Similar 
extension approvals were granted at that time by all the other Gloucestershire local 
authorities that together make up the membership of the GEGJC. The collective decision 
in 2020 removed the requirement for 12 months’ notice for any future changes to the 
agreement. 

1.2 The 18-month extension period was agreed to allow Gloucestershire local authorities to 
continue to work collaboratively together on Gloucestershire’s economic development 
through the Joint Committee.  At its June 2020 meeting, the Joint Committee also 
identified that it would be supporting the economic recovery of the county because of the 
economic impact of COVID-19.  The 18-month extension was to enable the Joint 
Committee to oversee the strategy development and delivery, as the principal 
partnership based economic co-ordination forum.   

1.3 GEGJC is the joint administrative body that manages and allocates funding from the 
Gloucestershire SEDF which is part of the Gloucestershire Business Rates Pool 
arrangements. Without a joint administrative body capable of making joint decisions, the 
SEDF could not function. 

1.4 All GEGJC member authorities recognised that a review of governance arrangements 
relating to economic strategy coordination should be undertaken at the appropriate time 
to avoid duplication and ensure best fit with government agendas. It was anticipated that 
this would be undertaken in the 18-month extension period, but this did not happen.  

16



 

1.5 Leadership Gloucestershire considered the future governance arrangements for leading 
economic growth in the county at its meeting in June 2021. Leadership Gloucestershire 
was mindful that the government would be publishing the DLUHC ‘Levelling Up’ White 
Paper which would potentially impact the future governance and partnership 
arrangements.  It was anticipated, at that time, that the White Paper could be available 
before Christmas 2021 which would allow Officers and Members time to consider the 
issues raised by its proposals and develop governance proposals in respect of the future 
economic agenda for Gloucestershire. 

1.6 Unfortunately, the anticipated White Paper was delayed. Consequently, at its meeting in 
January 2022 Leadership Gloucestershire considered three options in respect of the 
continuation of GEGJC pending the publication of the anticipated White Paper: 

1. Do nothing and let GEGJC terminate in March 2022 – this would mean no formal 
partnership decision making body on economic issues and specifically no joint 
administering body for the SEDF. Unless alternative governance arrangements were 
established for the SEDF, the funds would need to be handed back to the business 
rates pool authorities. 

2. Extend the life of the GEGJC for say 12 months or for as long as needed and carry 
on as at present. 

3. An alternative to option 2, was to extend the life of the GEGJC, but limit agenda items 
to SEDF decisions. The Gloucestershire City Region Board could then be used for all 
other strategic discussion, offering a wider partnership forum for these items. This 
option could be delivered by simply managing the GEGJC agenda and could be done 
without the need for significant amendments to the IAA. 

2.0 THE CURRENT POSITION 

2.1 Leadership Gloucestershire agreed that option 2 was the simplest and least disruptive 
option. It was agreed therefore that:  

 The GEGJC IAA is extended until 31 March 2023 to enable the GEGJC to continue 
until that time.  

 A review of the governance arrangements in respect of the future economic agenda 
for Gloucestershire is undertaken in that time, taking into account the Government’s 
proposals in the Levelling Up White Paper.  

 All GEGJC member authorities were requested to formally approve the extension of 
the GEGJC IAA. 

2.2 At the Council meeting on 22 February 2022, approval was given to extend the Council’s 
participation as a member of the GEGJC until March 2023. 

2.3 Over the past several months work has been on-going in relation to the governance 
arrangements in respect of the future economic agenda for Gloucestershire. In 
November 2022, a report was presented to GEGJC which contained draft proposals for 
establishing a single forum under the retained name of the Gloucestershire City Region 
Board, (GCRB). The report was agreed, however, the future development of the GCRB 
is dependent on any County Deal that is negotiated and agreed with central government. 
To enable an appropriate transfer to the refreshed governance it is recommended that 
GEGJC be extended for approximately six months to allow the GCRB to be finalised, 
ratified and established.   

17



 

3.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

3.1 None. 

4.0 CONSULTATION  

4.1 Leadership Gloucestershire. 

5.0 RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES/STRATEGIES 

5.1 Council Plan and Economic Development and Tourism Strategy. 

6.0 RELEVANT GOVERNMENT POLICIES  

6.1  Draft Levelling Up and Regeneration Bill: December 2022.  

7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (Human/Property) 

7.1 None. 

8.0 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS (Social/Community Safety/Cultural/ Economic/ 
Environment) 

8.1 None. 

9.0 IMPACT UPON (Value For Money/Equalities/E-Government/Human Rights/Health 
And Safety) 

9.1 None. 

10.0 RELATED DECISIONS AND ANY OTHER RELEVANT FACTS  

10.1 Council Resolution to extend the GEGJC IAA – July 2020 and February 2022.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Background Papers: Report to Council 28 July 2020: Gloucestershire Economic Growth 
Joint Committee - Extension of Operating Period 

 Report to Council 22 February 2022: Continuation of Gloucestershire 
Economic Growth Joint Committee – To 31 March 2023 

Contact Officer:  Chief Executive Tel: 01684 272001  

Appendices:  None. 

18



Document is Restricted

19

Agenda Item 10



Document is Restricted

27



Document is Restricted

150

Agenda Item 11



Document is Restricted

156



Document is Restricted

157



Document is Restricted

158


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	7 Amendment to Scheme of Delegation
	8 Continuation of Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee - To 30 September 2023
	10 Tewkesbury Garden Town - New Development Corporation Competition
	NDCC - TGT Outline Business Case - merged

	11 Staff Retention and Recruitment Phases 2 and 3
	Appendix 1 Main payscale
	Appendix 2 Senior Manager payscale
	Appendix 3 Senior Manager revised payscales


